RFP 25-01 and 25-02: Questions and Answers

Q. Who currently provides ground maintenance and vegetation management services?
A. Both ground maintenance and vegetation management services are currently being
provided by SFM.

Q. Is it common to encounter problematic visitors in the park?

A. Security is contracted along the park 24/7. Contractors are encouraged to report any
incidents to security immediately. In the event of an emergency, immediately
contact 911, then report the incident to the Park Operations Manager. In
addition, all graffiti must immediately be reported to the Park Operations Manager.
Any illegal substances identified on The Underline must also be reported
immediately to police and the Park Operations Manager. For non-emergency calls to
the police, dial the respective municipality’s non-emergency number.

Q. Are the service agreements bound by the county living wage ordinance? If so, how are
rates re-negotiated to reflect the annual living wage increase?
A. The agreements are bound by the county living wage ordinance. The contractor must
contact the President & COO in writing to request written permission for any rate
increases.

Q. Is the contractor expected to handle biological waste?

A. Biological and/or hazardous waste are not common in the park. However, as a public
destination that is open 24/7, the contractor should ensure their staff are fully
prepared for all situations. All handling and removal of waste will be the responsibility
of the Contractor.

Q. What are the hours of operation for The Underline?

A. The Underline is open 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. Contractors
are expected to staff accordingly, with Outdoor Maintenance occurring Sunday -
Monday and Vegetation Management occurring at a schedule that ensures all
vegetation is maintained safely.

Q. How much on-site storage is available for the contractor(s)?

A. Storage on The Underline is limited, and service providers are encouraged to take
their equipment with them when their work is complete. Proposers are encouraged to
present their ideas for storage as part of the RFP process. This includes overnight
golf cart parking.

e In the event that some storage space is made available, there cannot be any
flammable materials maintained onsite.

e |n the event that some storage space is made available, the service provider
is responsible for securing all equipment after each use and at the end of
each shift.



Q. Do you have a budget in mind?
A. Click here for last year’s expenditures for the 2.5 mile segment of The Underline that
was open at the time.

Q. Will mulching be included as part of the vegetation management services?
A. Yes, mulching will be included in the vegetation management services scope.

Q. Is the contractor required to remove invasive and volunteer saplings (young trees that are
not planted by The Underline)?

A. Yes. Invasive trees and volunteer saplings equal to or smaller than 4 inch DBH must
be removed by the contractor upon request by The Underline. The contractor must
verify with the Horticulturist that any volunteer saplings are unwanted prior to
removal.

Q. How should dead trees be handled?

A. Report all dead trees immediately to the Horticulturist. All dead shrubs and trees up
to 4 inch DBH must be removed by contractor. For trees larger than 4 inch DBH, the
contractor may submit a proposal for replacement as a separate work order.
Otherwise tree replacement work may be outsourced per TUMO’s discretion.

Q. Is the original vendor responsible for replacing dead trees?

A. The contractor is not responsible for replacement of dead trees or plants (unless said
plants were damaged or destroyed by the contractor). The contractor may submit a
proposal for replacement as a separate work order. Otherwise tree replacement
work may be outsourced per FUL's discretion.

Q. What are bioswales?
A. Bioswales are shallow channels in our gardens designed to reroute and collect
stormwater runoff into the gardens and away from municipal drains.They are typically
planted with native wetland plants and lined with gravel for water infiltration.

Q. Which herbicides, if any, are used as part of the project?

A. Herbicides may be permitted with restricted use. Bidders are encouraged to submit
an herbicide plan for consideration. An herbicide plan should include the product(s)
to be used, the frequency, seasonality and duration of use, public safety and PPE
protocol, and a protocol for informing staff of where and when herbicide is being
applied. An herbicide plan should consider the least toxic methodology to effectively
manage weeds.

The Underline aims to minimize the use of chemical herbicide, using manual weed
removal and organic options as exhaustively as possible. Herbicide use is not
permitted in garden beds. However, pre-approved herbicide use may be considered
to control weeds in open gravel areas, along path edges, between cracks in
pavement.


https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/j6yqi8zn3fcd6kcevhosi/TUMO-Outdoor-Maintenance-and-Vegetation-Management-Budget.pdf?rlkey=qbzr4sr5jrl22pn94dugui69o&st=xr3xve48&dl=0

Q. How is irrigation handled in the park?
A. Irrigation is not currently used for maintaining The Underline gardens.

Q. What is the protocol for invasive plant species?

A. Invasive plant species must be reported to the Horticulturist and removed manually
from the gardens in their entirety. In the case of invasive woody shrubs or trees,
removal may require mechanical and chemical treatments. This will be determined
on a case-by-case basis.

Q. Where is the service boundary?
A. Services cover all areas of the park up to US-1. All areas of The Underline that have
been improved are covered by these agreements.

Q. Will any mowing be necessary?
A. There is currently no mowing necessary in the park.

Q. To what extent are trees to retain their natural shape?

A. Trees and shrubs should be trimmed to maintain their natural shape using manual
pruning tools; no hedge trimmers or machetes. Trees and shrubs should be trimmed
manually to maintain clearance along pedestrian and bike paths (clearance of 10 ft)
and along roads (clearance of 16 ft) and to keep vegetation from encroaching into
paths.

Q. Is there a small business enterprise requirement?
A. Yes, please refer to Section 2 of the RFP.

Q. Are Dumpster sites available?

A. While The Underline does retain Dumpsters for general trash and recycling removal,
they are not to be used for vegetation. All vegetative debris generated from
landscaping work ( leaf litter, branches, palm fronds, etc.) must be removed from The
Underline and properly disposed of off-site.

Dumpster space is strictly used only for trash that is generated on The
Underline. Flammable and construction materials are prohibited.

Q. How many porters are required for each shift?
A. The Proposer should consider themselves the experts and propose how many
porters they will require to fulfill the duties of the contract.

We encourage all bidders to propose a schedule and staffing sufficient to accomplish
the scope of work detailed in the RFP.



Q. Are the trash and doggy bags provided?
A. The trash and doggy bags must be furnished and replenished by the contractor. The
Underline does not currently provide trash or doggy bags.

Q. Is the RFP worksheet required?
A. A completed RFP worksheet must be submitted as part of the application package.
However, the Proposer may provide additional information outside of the
requirements by adding additional rows to the worksheet.

Q. How many gyms or fithess rooms are there on The Underline?
A. Upon completion, The Underline will have two gyms (the Urban Gym and an
additional Fitness Room facility behind the Coral Gables Fire Station).

Q. How many miles are covered by the RFP?
A. Please take into consideration the entire 10-mile linear park when completing the
RFP. Your scope of work should anticipate operating the full 10-mile,120 acre space
once construction is complete.

Q. Who is responsible for emptying and changing trash receptacles?
A. The Outdoor Maintenance contractor is responsible for in-park trash removal. The
Contractor should provide options for off-site trash removal at the end of each shift.

RFP 25-01 and RFP 25-02: Questions and Answers via Email

Q. Please clarify the deadline for submission. Page 1 shows September 22, 2025, and page 2
shows a deadline of September 12, 2025.
A. The submission deadline for both RFP 25-01 and 25-02 is September 22, 2025.

Q. Please clarify the number of copies to be submitted. Page 14, Sec. 1.56, H. references three
(3) copies of sets of” forms.” Page 22, Sec. 5.3 indicates five (5) bound copies of “materials” are
to be submitted.

A. Please submit three (3) copies of the RFP materials for consideration.

Q. Page 22, Sec. 5.3 references “The Cover Page Form.” Is this the same as the RFP
Information Form on page 457 If not, please provide a page number for the Cover Page Form.
A. The RFP Information form is the Cover Page Form.

Q. Page 23, Sec. 5.3, Proposers Experience and Past Performance. Please clarify the specific
license required in the instruction to provide a “current license issued by the City.”
A. Business license

Q. Page 39, Sec. E, Supply Refill, Sports Related Supplies. Please provide a description of the
sports related supplies requested.



A. The successful proposer will be required to report equipment that needs to be replaced,
and is expected to be the eyes and ears of the park. Sports equipment that may need to
be replaced includes but is not limited to: basketball and soccer nets, Bocce ball sets,
etc. Upon the report of the missing equipment, the proposer will ask TUMO to purchase
the new sports equipment.

Q. Page 39, Sec. G, A.4., Quarterly Assessment. This refers to an active dashboard showing
recurring tasks. What platform does The Underline use or seek to use?
A. TUMO currently uses Cartegraph, a digital inventory system. The vendor is encouraged
to use what works best for them and shall work with TUMO to align efforts to track
metrics for a shared dashboard for reporting purposes.

Q. How many square feet will we be required to service the linear park at the start of this work?
To be able to give a fair price can The Underline provide a phasing schedule for the project
development with corresponding approximate square footages.
A. The landscaping in the open section of The Underline currently totals 660,052 square
feet.
B. We currently have 4 miles open, the cross-section is on average 100 ft. TUMO expects
to have 6 miles by the end of this calendar year and all 10 miles (120 acres) will be open
by Summer of 2026.

Q. Is the Bid Bond required to be submitted on or before the proposal submission deadline?
A. The Bond requirement in Section 1 is required at the date of submission.

Q. For this RFP, which jurisdiction’s purchasing ordinance will govern the evaluation and award
process?
A. The Underline is an independent 501(c)(3) on County land.

Q. The park opens from sunrise to sunset. Would you like the services to be done at that time?
A. The park is open 24/7. However, there are amenities that are locked overnight.

Q. Since the service is for one year can we get the bond for 1 year only?
A. Please refer to Section 2 of the RFP.

Q. Are we responsible for cleaning the Urban Gym & Basketball Court. Also, would like to know
what type of floor it is.
A. Yes. The floor is painted asphalt.

Q. Are we responsible for mildew, fungus & remediation services?
A. As an outdoor park, remediation for occasional mildew typically would not be necessary.

Q. Are we responsible for transporting bio waste or any trash?
A. Yes, all trash including bio waste must be removed.



Q. Will TUMO provide training on the Beneficial Weeds manual and rare species ID, or must the
contractor develop its own program?
A. TUMO will provide a one-time orientation to management who can then train their
employees.

Q. Is the contractor responsible for plant replacement of rare materials if they fail.

A. The contractor is not responsible for replacement of dead trees or plants (unless said
plants were damaged or destroyed by the contractor). The contractor may submit a
proposal for replacement as a separate work order. Otherwise plant replacement work
may be outsourced per TUMO'’s discretion.

Q. For electric vehicle requirements, are specific brands/models approved, or is contractor
discretion acceptable?
A. Discretion is acceptable as long as they are electric and can fit between our security
bollards.

Q. Will mulch type and source be designated by TUMO, or will this be a contractor
responsibility?
A. Mulch specifications will be designated. Source is at contractor discretion.

Q. For storm/hurricane response, is additional compensation available outside regular
maintenance rates?
A. Yes, extreme storm rates are part of the RFP (please refer to section 3.5).

Q. How will performance be evaluated—quantitative metrics (response time, % plant survival,
litter-free inspection scores) or qualitative inspections?
A. Performance will be evaluated both quantitatively and qualitatively and determined jointly
between TUMO and the vendor upon award.

Q. Are there restrictions on subcontracting specialty services (tree climbing, storm debris
removal, irrigation repairs)?
A. Subject to Management’s approval,all subcontractors must be licensed and bonded and
must comply with the standards in the RFP.

Q. For Right of Way areas along US 1, is the Contractor required to have MOT Certification and
MOT plan while performing work?
A. Yes. The Contractor must have the appropriate MOT plan, when operating machinery on
USH1.



Q. Based on prior responses, since the majority of areas are considered gardening beds, can
you confirm that the anticipated weed management for the full 10-mile project will consist of
manual and limited mechanical activities supported by an oil-based herbicide or least toxic
herbicide?

A. As mentioned previously, The Underline aims to minimize the use of chemical herbicide.
Manual weed removal is required within garden beds. Herbicide use is not permitted in
garden beds. However, herbicide use may be considered to control weeds in open
gravel areas, along path edges, between cracks in pavement. A pre-approved herbicide
plan should consider the least toxic methodology to effectively manage weeds.

Q. Does this project have any liquidated damages?
A. TUMO will charge $100 each time the Horticulturist or her staff members have to inspect
work that was not completed by the contractor.

Q. Do you have a bid bond form or will the standard surety form suffice?
A. Please prefer to Section 2 of the RFP.

Q. How many stations on the list sheet going to be open that we have to service?
A. The Underline is separate from The Metrorail. Station maintenance is not included in this
RFP.

Q. Do all licenses and certifications need to be submitted with a bid?
A. All requested licenses are included in the RFP.

Q. Is MOT required?
A. See above.

Q. Are Miami-Dade Ordinances and General Terms and Conditions applied to this solicitation?
A. Yes.

Q. Will the award vendor be responsible for cleaning the Basketball hoops and backboards?
A. Yes, the Contractor will be responsible for cleaning the basketball hoops and backboards
as needed.

Q. Also, would the fields be with artificial grass or concrete and are we responsible for
maintaining them?
A. There is no artificial grass used along the TUMO maintained portions of The Underline.
Fitness courts are painted asphalt. The vendor will be responsible for maintaining all
specified amenities.

Q. Are there seasonal variations in the work (for example, heavier service coverage between
November and April)?
A. There are seasonal variations, depending on the activity in our linear park. Adjustments
can be made as needed.



Q. What is the protocol when we encounter large bulk items that are trash (Furniture, etc.)?
Are we responsible for maintaining paver areas at Coconut Grove Station, including bird
dropping removal? We saw a separate company maintaining this area during our due diligence.
A. The Metrorail stations are maintained by a separate company that is contracted with the
county. Anything around and outside the station along The Underline is the responsibility
of the Contractor. Typically bulk items need to be removed immediately and disposed of
off-site.

Q. For leaf removal, should we only blow leaves aside, or also collect and haul them away?
A. Refer to the section on “Leaf Removal” in the RFP. Leaf material must not be blown into
adjacent gardens. Materials must be piled and removed.

Q. Does the present company use a street sweeper to clean the trail at night?
A. No, the current Contractor does not use a street sweeper.

Q. How often should pressure cleaning of the trail take place? (monthly or quarterly)
A. Pressure cleaning must be completed as needed.

Q. How often should pressure cleaning of the benches take place? (monthly or quarterly)
A. Benches are not to be pressure cleaned, they are painted. They should be hand-washed
and cleaned as needed.

Q. Are we responsible for pressure cleaning the actual tri-rail columns and concrete?
A. The Metrorail columns will be cleaned as needed upon request.

Q. After graffiti is reported to the Park operations manager, would you like us to use a
plant-based graffiti remover to clean the surface? Or will someone else be handling the graffiti
removal?
A. Non-toxic cleaners can be used to remove graffiti. If painting is required, TUMO staff will
be responsible.

Q. Would you like us to provide gum removal services in this RFP? It is a separate service
using a butane system. If so, at what frequency (Quarterly, Bi-annually or annually)
A. Gum removal is required as it is part of maintenance and should be done as needed.

Q. How often should rust stains and calcium deposits on fountains, dog stations, etc. be
cleaned? In addition, would you like us to provide pricing for exterior metal restoration and
protection?
A. Water fountains and dog stations should be cleaned daily. Stains must be cleaned as
needed. Metal protection is not required at this time.

Q. How often should plexi-glass on trash receptacles be cleaned and should they be pressure
washed on a monthly or quarterly basis?



A. Plexi-glass should be cleaned daily. Trash receptacles should not be pressure cleaned
as they are painted.

Q. Would you consider having us apply a mold-inhibiting, eco-friendly chemical to clean and
maintain optimal appearance of concrete surfaces throughout the Underline? This chemical
application lasts for 3 months, significantly decreases the labor cost involved with pressure
cleaning, and would need to be provided by a separate crew. The treatment is eco-friendly and
safe to humans, animals and vegetation.

A. With proper maintenance, mold in the park is not an issue.

Q. Would you consider having us apply a mold-inhibiting, eco-friendly chemical to clean and
maintain optimal appearance of playgrounds, HDPE plastics, etc. throughout the Underline?
This chemical application lasts for 3 months, significantly decreases the labor cost involved with
pressure cleaning or restorative cleaning, and would need to be provided by a separate crew.
The treatment is eco-friendly and safe to humans, animals and vegetation.

A. With proper maintenance, mold in the park is not an issue.

Q. Where are the main dumping stations located along The Underline where we can dump the
trash bags from the trash cans?
A. TBD. This will be jointly determined between TUMO and the vendor. Please provide
options for off-site dumping.

Q. Will we be responsible for maintaining Woodside Mini park that is under construction next to
the Underline once it is completed?
A. No, the RFP covers only The Underline.

Q. Are we responsible for cleaning the portable restrooms along the Underline? If so, how
many times per day? How often are they serviced by the vendor?
A. Not currently, but if bathrooms are added to The Underline, cleaning the restrooms may
be added to the scope at a later date.

Q. When rust appears on site elements or surfaces, should we send someone to remove it or
report it to the maintenance department so they can treat the irrigation well?
A. Report to maintenance.

Q. Are we responsible for doing anything at the Citi Bike Stations that are being installed along
the trail?
A. Wipe down surfaces, maintain areas around the station and report any issues. Bikes
don’t need to be touched.

Q. Are contractors allowed to use the storage containers next to the Hammock Playground or
Vizcaya station for equipment or supply storage?
A. No



Q. Where does the current contractor park and charge their golf carts? Is there a cost
associated with it?
A. TBD. Currently bring it charged

Q. Are staff expected to provide additional coverage for special events? If so, who will give
advance notice?
A. Yes, TUMO will provide advanced notice and negotiate event coverage separately.

Q. Will two-way radios or communication devices be provided by the client so they can be used
in conjunction with the maintenance team? Or is the contractor required to provide them?
A. No, What’'s App

Q. Are there specific services that should be scheduled at specific times to avoid public
disruption?
A. As specified in the RFP, TUMO requires electric / battery powered leaf blowers for
sustainability and quiet. The vendor will work with TUMO to schedule any services that
may cause a nuisance at a mutually agreed upon time.

Q. Who conducts inspections of contractor work (client staff, third party, etc.)?
A. TUMO and a third-party committee

Q. How are service orders or emergencies reported and resolved?
A. All emergencies shall be immediately reported to the Park Operations Manager to
determine options for resolution based on the situation. Service Orders will be requested
per Contractor’s policy.

Q. Is there a certain protocol to clean computerized equipment to maintain warranties?
A. These types of procedures will be determined by the Park Operations Manager with the
vendor.

Q. In the supply section of the RFP, what is considered “Sports related supplies” and are these
supposed to be provided by the contractor?
A. See above for the response.

Q. Is maintenance of the palm fronds required?

A. Please refer to Section 6. Unless posing a safety risk or immediate obstruction to
motorists, pedestrians, signage or other important infrastructure, palm fronds are not to
be removed from palms.

B. Palm fronds that have fallen to the ground must be removed immediately.



